
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

 

     INVOCATION /  Pastor Rife Stewart with Destiny Church 
 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

      

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / August 17, 2015  

 

                                                    

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

Review minutes / August 17
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

Review minutes / August 17
th
  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

Review minutes / August 24
th
  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

Review Special meeting minutes / July 30
th
  

Review Staff Report / August 27
th
  

MOTION: Set a Public Hearing date for October 5, 2015 and to approve advertising to consider: 

a.)  Revisions to the Land Use and Development Ordinance / Zoning Map 

 

b.) Pre-zone:    John W. West 

Present zoning:   RSF-4, Two Family District, Baldwin County District 16, in the 

     extra-territorial planning jurisdiction of Daphne 

 

Proposed zoning:   B-1, Local Business, City of Daphne 

 

Location:    Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy Cross Drive 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               September 8, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 

c.) Annexation:   John W. West  
 Location:    Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy Cross Drive 

 

 Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

d.)  Zoning Amendment  Cadence Bank 

Present zoning:   R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

 

Proposed Pre-zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development District, City of Daphne 

 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

e.)  Pre-zoning:   Cadence Bank 

Present zoning:   RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15, in the 

     extra-territorial planning jurisdiction 

 

Proposed Pre-zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, District, City of Daphne 

 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

f.) Annexation:   Cadence Bank 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

      

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes / July 29
th
  

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

      

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

 



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               September 8, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 
 

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-57 “Option A”. . . . . . . . . . . .Reappoint John Lake to the Renaissance Center Improvement  

                                                                                   District Board of Directors 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-57 “Option “B”. . . . . . . . . . .Appoint Joe Davis to the Renaissance Center Improvement  

                                                                                   District Board of Directors 

                                                                                     

 

c.)  Resolution 2015-58 “Option A”. . . . . . . . . . . . Reappoint John Lake to the Renaissance Center Cooperative 

          District Board of Directors 

 

d.)  Resolution 2015-58 “Option “B”. . . . . . . . . . . Appoint Joe Davis to the Renaissance Center Cooperative 

          District Board of Directors 

 

                                                                     

       ORDINANCES:  

 

         2ND
  READ    

a.)  Ordinance 2015-46. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

b.   Ordinance 2015-47. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-48. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-49. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Daphne High School Fund Raiser / Taste of the 

                                                           Eastern Shore 

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-50. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Job Reclassification: Battalion Chief 

 

 

 1
ST

 READ 
 a.)  Ordinance 2015-51. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Consenting to the Sale by the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne 

                                                           of Certain Surplus Personal Property  

               

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Kevin Boucher, Attorney; Michael Beron, Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Kelli 

Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer;  Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Ashley 

Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Kenny Hanak, Battalion Chief, Fire Department; Dorothy Morrison, 

DRA/Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory 

Committee; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee/Village Point Foundation; Tomasina 

Werner, Beautification Committee; Toni Fassbender, IDB; Denis Kearney, IDB; Doug Bailey, IDB; Jeffrey Ramsland, 

IDB; David Tarwater, Baldwin County Board of Education; Dr. Meredith Foster, Principal Daphne High School; Heiko 

Einfeld, Executive Director of the ES Chamber of Commerce; Representative Randy Davis. 

 

Absent:  James White, Fire Chief; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Reverend Richard Mueller of Holy Trinity Lutheran Church gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

August 3, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the August 3, 2015 Council meeting minutes are approved as written.  

 

August 10, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the August 10, 2015 Work Session minutes are approved as written.  

 

 

PRESENTATION:     Eagle Scout Project / Jesse Bartle, Troop 82 

 

Mr. Bartle presented an Eagle Scout Project to council for repairs, improvements and a memorial at McMillan Avenue 

Park.  His plan is to clean, pressure wash and reseal the decking around the trees and add a park bench and permanent 

trash can.  He will landscape around the adjacent oak tree, replace or repair broken worn down stairs and cut back over 

grown vegetation.  He will clean up, pressure wash and re-stain the deck around the tree and plant a memory garden 

with flowers and shrubs and add a park bench.  The reason for this project is that his sister Lillian Grace Bartle passed 

away in July, and he wanted to put a park bench in memory of her in the park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

             a.)   Pre-zone:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                    Located:        Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

                    Present zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

                    Requested zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

                    Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Planning Director, gave the presentation. 

 

 There were no questions from Council. 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 7:53 p.m. 

 

Mr. Rod Drummond – Ridgewood Drive – said that he did not know enough about the matter to make up his mind. 

 

Mr. David Tarwater – Baldwin County Board of Education – spoke in favor of the pre-zoning. 

 

Mr. Shawn Alves – Stone, Grande and Crosby – said there is no Class-A office space in Daphne, and if there had 

been they would not have built their office on Highway 90.  They had a strong desire to rent, but no office space 

was available. 

 

Ms. Donna Givens – Baldwin County Economic Development Alliance – spoke regarding the need for Class-A 

office space saying that they have had to pass on a prospect that would have had 800-1,000 employees and needed 

50,000 square feet of space.  Daphne is not competitive because of not having Class-A office space. 

 

Dr. Meredith Foster – Principal of Daphne High School and representing principals in feeder patterns in 

Daphne – spoke in support of the pre-zoning.  She said the schools are very excited of the prospect of working out a 

partnership with the businesses that come into the park. 

 

Mr. Michael Pierce – 9823 Evanston Street – He is with the Airport Authority in Mobile, and he spoke in favor of 

the pre-zoning saying that site selectors fly in to look for sites other than Mobile, and this park would serve 

businesses well in the area. 

 

Mrs. Laura McMann – spoke in opposition to the pre-zoning. 

 

Mr. John Hewitt – spoke in favor of the pre-zoning. 

 

Mr. Heiko Einfeld – ES Chamber of Commerce – supports the pre-zoning of the property and the need to be 

diversified. 

 

Mr. Mike Francis – JMF Solutions – spoke in favor of the pre-zoning. 

 

Mr. Chad Stafford – Pastor of Coastal Church – spoke in favor of the pre-zoning. 

 

 

 

6



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Boosketuh Circle – spoke in opposition of the pre-zoning saying is it the right time and 

place for this and are they sacrificing quality of  life.  He also spoke regarding the access point to the project off 

Highway 181 saying that it is in conflict with ALDOT regulations at the intersection of Highway 181 and 

Champion’s Way.  The state minimum is 2,600 linear feet.  The reason for the requirement is to maintain the 55 

mph speed limit. 

 

Mr. Doug Bailey – Hutchinson, Moore and Rauch – lifelong resident and member of the IDB – mentioned that 

he spoke with ALDOT and got a copy of the comprehensive master plan for Highway 181 that Mr. Lake had 

referred to in an earlier conversation, and in order to make sure he had the right documents he talked with the 

engineers who produced the plan to make sure he was interpreting it correctly.  He said that Mr. Lake and Mr. 

Lawson were correct 2,600 linear feet is the distance of separation for having a signalized intersection for that speed 

of 55 mph through there, however, 1,320 feet is the distance allowable for a full service access, and that is going 

north turn left in, going south turn right in, and coming out turning left out to the north, and turning right to the 

south out.  So they could have a full service intersection as shown in the drawings.  Signalized would have to be 

done based on an amended or variance to the access management plan, and based upon a warrant study done 

through a traffic study.  He said there has been a lot of criticism because they have not done a traffic study, but what 

is on the agenda is a pre-zoning and annexation request, and they realize that network will have to be put into the 

project at the correct time, but they did not feel it was wise to spend the dollars when they don’t know if they have a 

project on the table.  The study will be done at the correct time. He just wanted to correct the information regarding 

the access that they can have the access as shown on the drawings. 

 

(There were e-mails received regarding the pre-zoning and DISC project that are attached to these minutes.) 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m. 

 

            b.)   Annexation:  The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                   Location:    Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

           Recommendation:      Unanimous favorable 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones gave the presentation. 

 

No questions from Council. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 7:19 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the annexation. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 7:19 p.m. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The August 10
th
 minutes are in the packet. 

 

7



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to go out to bid for repairs to Fire Station #2 building with cost to come back to 

Council for appropriation approval.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Treasurers Report / July 2015 

As of July 31, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds – 9,341,557 and Total City Funds - $17,658,792 

 

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,341,557                   

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $2,026,279 

 Total Restricted Funds - $8,317,235  

 Total City Funds - $17,658,792    

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.2 months compared to 

the previous year -  4.4  months 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / June 2015 

$1,252,030.17 was collected for June, 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $(12,741.89)          

 Increase from last year’s collections   $49,903.51;  + 4.2% 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / June 2015 

Collections for June, 2015 were $111,337.21 which is down ($16,583.16)  from June, 2014’s collections of $127,920.37.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $46,965 

 Percentage change YTD from last year’s collections:  +24.7% 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The August 3
rd

 minutes are in the packet.  

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The committee met today, and Fire Station #3 will reopen in a few weeks.  The next meeting will be September 21
st
. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The committee met today, and the next meeting will be September 21
st
 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The round-a-bout is open, and the next meeting will be September 8
th
. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting is August 26
th
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

8



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be August 24
th
 at 6:00 p.m.  Councilman Davis recognized the IDB members that were present 

Toni Fassbender, Denis Kearney, Doug Bailey and Jeffrey Ramsland. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Dr. James Morris seminars will be September 12, 19 and 26 at the Recreation Center. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Site Preview meeting will be Wednesday at 8:30 a.m., and the Planning Commission meeting will be Thursday 

August 27
th
 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The board met Wednesday, but did not have a quorum.  The surveys should be done at Lott Park and Trione Sports 

Complex.  The Park Committee will be meeting soon. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to name the new Lake Forest Park “Daphne Central Park”.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The minutes for the June 24
th
 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be August 26

th
 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood thanked everybody for coming out whether in support, opposed or to learn more about the DISC 

project.  Being a part of the process is the democratic way, and is how this community should be run.  He said it was 

great to see this level of participation.  He wanted to make sure everyone knows they have held a series of town hall 

meetings at the subdivision level, as well as, discussed this matter and provided an over-view at the work session.  

They have heard concerns, and have heard some good ideas from the town hall meetings.  There will be additional 

meetings on the project before it proceeds.  Mayor Haygood said it is great to have the round-a-bout open, and he gave 

kudos to Richard Johnson and the Public Works staff for staying on the project.  He also recognized that the project 

was a partnership with the county, and it was a county run project that the city was able to assist heavily on, and there 

was some grant funding from the state involved.  He reported that Santa Rosa was repaved prior to school opening 

which was accomplished in one day.  Mayor Haygood commended Chief Carpenter and his staff along with a number 

of law enforcement agencies for hosting a new program called “STYLE” which stands for “Successful Tips for Youth 

on Law Enforcement Encounters.”  He said this came about because of a comment by Pastor Jackson who wanted to 

see a forum where young people could interact with law enforcement and understand what the expectations were, and 

during discussions on that Chief Carpenter and his staff were able to identify this program.  This is a collaboration with 

the FBI, as well as, the US District Attorney of Mobile, his office and the Baldwin County Sheriff’s Department.  He 

said the kids and adults were able to engage in a day-long session where they learned a lot about the perspective of a 

police officer.  It was a good community building exercise.  He appreciated Chief Carpenter and his staff and the other 

agencies involved.  He said he appreciated Dr. Foster and some of the parents coming out for the meeting as this was 

the first day of school to support the DISC project.  He commended Adrienne Jones for a job well done. She has 

9



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

handled herself well in some difficult situations where there is a demand to know, and to give her professional opinion, 

and he appreciates all that she does. 

 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to hire Richard Davis of Davis and Fields Law Firm to represent the city in a 

claim against BP.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Mr. Ross said that there is a personnel matter regarding job performance, that he would like to discuss with council in 

executive session, which is allowable according to the Open Meetings Act,  at the end of the meeting. 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

Kenny Hanak – Fire Department Battalion Chief – reported work was finishing up on Fire Station #3 and hopes to 

have it open by the end of the week. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported school started today and they had several hiccups, and the round-a-bout 

went well. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported the fall sports registration was finishing up, and he gave the sports 

schedule for Trione. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center – reported the Taste of the Eastern Shore is Thursday, 7:00 p.m., and they have 32 

vendors signed up. 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
    a.)  Event Permit  /  S.E.E.D.S. 12

th
 Annual Classic Rock and Fun Run / March 5, 2016 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to approve the Events Permit S.E.E.D.S. 12
th

 Annual Classic Rock and Fun 

Run / March 5, 2016.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

   

    b.) ABC License / ES Chamber Foundation / 27
th
 Annual Jubilee Festival / 240 – Non-Profit Tax Exempt 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to approve the ABC License for the ES Chamber Foundation / 27
th

 Annual 

Jubilee Festival / 240 – Non-Profit Tax Exempt.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE   Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Davis, Conaway                                  NAY    Rudicell 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

10



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

Mrs. Hayes reminded everyone that the next council meeting will be Tuesday September 8
th
 because Monday the 7

th
 is 

Labor Day. 

 

 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – spoke regarding traffic patterns for business and school, and having clean 

businesses for the DISC project. 

 

Mr. Henry Lawson – 104 Boosketuh Circle – spoke regarding coming into the 21
st
 century saying that growth has 

accelerated the silt problems in the streams, and the city is a victim of unregulated growth. 

 

Mr. Bob Segalla – Creekside Subdivision – said that the round-a-bout at Whispering Pines is working well. 

 

Representative Randy Davis – 6590 Thompson Lane – said that the work in Lake Forest is exceptional.  He said that 

he has been involved with the BP money for the DISC project, and it is one of the projects that fits the criteria for the 

BP money.  He is working to keep the BP money in the two counties that were affected.  He gave an update on what is 

going on in the legislature. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-52. . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Mayor to Dispose 

                                                               (One (1) 2004 & Four (4) 2006 Crown Vic’s) 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-53. . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award:  Village Point Park Preserve Trail  Extension / Asphalt Services 

 

c.)   Resolution 2015-54. . . . . . . . . . . . ALDOT Funding Agreement: Preliminary Engineering: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd.    

                                                                & Longue Vue Blvd. 

 

d.)   Resolution 2015-55. . . . . . . . . . . . ALDOT Funding Agreement: Construction: Turning Lane at Sehoy Blvd. &  

                                                                Longue Vue Blvd. 

 

e.)   Resolution 2015-56. . . . . . . . . . . . Revisions to City Street Map 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-52, 2015-53, 2015-54, 2015-55 and 

2015-56. Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-52. Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

11



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-53.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Resolutions 2015-54 and 2015-55.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-56.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

ORDINANCES: 
 

          2
ND

  READ  
a.) Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “A”). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City of        

                                                                                                 Daphne Pay Scale   

b.)  Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “B”). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City   

                                                                                                 of  Daphne Pay Scale     

d.)   Ordinance 2015-45. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amending the Policy for Community Grants / Ordinance 2014-16  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “B”).  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 MOTION  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2015-36 (Amendment “B”).  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Davis                                                  NAY    LeJeune  

 

MOTION  CARRIED  

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-45.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune adopt  Ordinance 2015-45.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

12



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 

a.)  Ordinance 2015-46. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

b.   Ordinance 2015-47. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation:  Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of 

                                                                of  the Intersection of Champion’s Way and AL Hwy 181 / The Bill’s No. 2, 

                                                                 LLC  

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-48. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Village Point Park Preserve Trail Extension 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-49. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Daphne High School Fund Raiser / Taste of the 

                                                           Eastern Shore 

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-50. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Job Reclassification: Battalion Chief 

 

ORDINANCES 2015-46, 2015-47, 2015-48, 2015-49 AND 2015-50 ARE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Fry thanked everyone for coming out.  He welcomed their input and holding council accountable.  He 

said the Eagle Scout project is worthwhile.  He is glad the round-a-bout is working fine. He encouraged everyone to 

cooperate and be patient.  He wished Councilman Rudicell happy birthday. 

 

Councilman Scott commented on the landscaping for the Dollar General on Highway 181where they have put 10-12 

boxwoods. He said that the DISC project was going to get done, and it does not have to be in the City of Daphne, but if 

the city wants to have control of it, and have nice landscaping like the Eastern Shore Park, and if you want all the 

traffic and none of the benefits then don’t annex the property.  Change happens, and it is a matter of can we control it 

or are they going to let it develop with no control. 

 

Councilman LeJeune wished Councilman Rudicell and Mrs. Jones a happy birthday.  He hopes everyone stays safe 

since school has reopened.  There is a lot of talk about the technology park and there are still questions and he 

appreciates everyone voicing their concerns or support.  There has been a lot of talk about traffic, the city had an 

opportunity to help with some of the traffic some years ago with the interchange on Highway 90, and the council at 

that time decided against it, and they are now trying to get that back to have some take away from Highway 181, 

especially in the Malbis area.  Now they are scrambling to get that back.  The city has caused some of this, but they 

want to keep an eye out for the future, and what they can do to improve the situation.  Daphne is a great place to live, 

and it is a great place to raise a family.  He thinks this project can enhance Daphne, and make it better, and he cannot 

wait to see what will happen in the future of Daphne. 

 

13



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

Councilman Davis read a poem from 1896 and asked everyone to figure out where they are and where they want to be.  

There are two kinds of people on earth today, just two kinds of people no more I say. Not the sinner and saint for it is 

well understood that the good are half bad and the bad are half good.  Not the rich and the poor for to rate a man’s 

wealth you must first know the state of his conscience and health.  Not the humble and proud and in life’s little span 

people who put on vain airs is not counted as a man.  Not the happy and sad for the swift flying years brings each man 

his laughter and each man his tears.  There are two kinds of people on earth I mean the people who lift and the  

 

people who lean.  Wherever you go you will find earths masses are always divided in those two classes.  In which class 

are you, easing the load of overtaxed lifters who toil down the road or are you a leaner who let others share your 

portion of labor, worry and care? 

 

Councilman Rudicell said just a reminder there was a young man named Jesse Bartle that got up and spoke this 

evening and for all the ramblings back and forth they have done for the last two hours, and what he has been through 

for the last two months should put all of them to shame.  The lack of full disclosure on this building, and the lack of the 

ability to understand each other’s positions is kind of reprehensible when you have a young man like that get up and 

speak.  Whatever the vote comes out to be they should not hold it against one another for having their own points of 

view.   

 

Councilman Lake said gazebo at Park City Park; it is in the budget and he would like to see it done before he dies. He 

spoke on Class A office space saying that he has heard it so much that it makes him sick.  He read in the paper that a 

car dealership building was repurposed into Class A office space in downtown Mobile. He said when you talk about 

transparency this whole thing was done without council knowledge.  The money from BP was taken without the 

council having prior knowledge, and he still does not think that was proper.  He said the big thing is the Highway 181 

access plan that was put together years ago to address road issues, and to keep from making the same mistakes they 

made 20 years ago on Highway 98 where they put stop lights on top of stop lights never looking at what they were 

creating.  What they tried to do was address the traffic flow along the Eastern Shore so they could protect the quality of 

life, and the Highway 181 access plan was it.  A prior council agreed to it.  He has repeatedly said they need to revisit 

that plan and follow it, and make the county follow it and make the state highway department follow it. 

 

Mayor Haygood followed up on Councilman Lake’s comments on the DISC project saying the fact that there is 75 

acres with a single entrance meets with the intent of what they are doing with an access plan.  They will be meeting 

with ALDOT and other officials as they move forward.  There will be an additional review by the Planning 

Commission once there is a final site plan.  He thanked Representative Davis for coming to update them on things that 

are happening at the state level.  He does not know when Lake Forest has looked better.  He mentioned that the city has 

spent over $12 million in Lake Forest in the past five years.  He does not think you will find another subdivision where 

there is a greater commitment.  He said they will continue to work on additional sidewalks and parks to improve the 

subdivision.  He reported on a new event that will start September 18
th
 and go until November 6

th
 which is a Farmer’s 

Market being hosted by the Daphne Art Center at the Daphne United Methodist Church. 

 

Council President Conaway reminded everyone that the “Back to School Bash” will be Saturday at Lott Park and 

encouraged everyone to come out with their children and grandchildren. 

 

Council President Conaway mentioned that they failed to make a motion to approve the Eagle Scout project. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Eagle Scout Project that Jesse Bartle presented earlier in the 

meeting.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

14



AUGUST 17, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the job performance of an 

employee with no action required of council .  The session will last for 15 minutes.    Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

Jay Ross, City Attorney, certified that the foregoing reason to adjourn into Executive Session is appropriate 

according to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:25 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,      Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk       Council President 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



CODE ENFORCMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, August 17, 2015 

City Hall Executive Conference Room 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman    Councilwoman Tommie Conway 

Councilman Randy Fry     Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Pat Rudicell     Councilman Joe Davis 

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 The chairman declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present:  Ron Scott; Pat Rudicell; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Tommie Conaway; John Lake; 

Joe Davis. 

 

Also Present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk / recording secretary; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; 

Matt Creel, Code Enforcement Officer; Jamie Smith, Revenue Officer; Victoria Phelps. 

 

II. APPROVE MINUTES / July 20, 2015 

There were no corrections to the July 20, 2015 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

IV. ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

a.) Discuss:  Establish Policy for Appointing and Reappointing Committee Members 

 

The committee discussed having rules to govern the appointments and reappoints in order to be consistent 

down the line with all committees.  They discussed having something in place to give an alert when a 

term is expiring. 

 

The committee requested Mrs. Hayes to compile the incorporation sections for boards and authorities 

where it gives the term length for a member. 

 

The committee discussed the appointment of a councilmember to the Renaissance Center board. 

 

The committee forwarded this to the next council meeting for consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

35



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      JULY 20, 2015 Page 2 

 

 

b.)  Discuss Polling Places: 

 

The committee discussed having all polling places at the Civic Center or having two polling places, one at 

the Civic Center and one on the east side of the city for districts 6 and 7.  The concerns were safety and 

getting people out of inclement weather.  There was no consensus at this time, and will be discussed at a 

later time. 

 

V. OTHER BUSINESS  

a.)  Uber Internet Taxi Service 

 

Jamie Smith, Revenue Officer, said she had received a copy of Mobile’s ordinance regarding this service, 

but has not had a chance to read it.  She suggested maybe getting with the county and creating a permit 

agreement with Uber for the whole county to use.  She said that other cities have an ordinance regulating 

taxi services, but Daphne does not have one, and it would be a good thing if they had one. 

 

Matt Creel, Code Enforcement Officer, said that it would be hard to enforce the ordinance since people 

use their personal cars which have no markings on them. 

 

The committee requested Mrs. Smith to compile ordinances from other municipalities for the next 

meeting. 

 

b.)  Update on Handbill Clean Sweep 

 

Matt said that he took Mr. Daugherty from the Press-Register on a tour of the city to see all the handbill 

packets that no one had picked up.  He was surprised at what he saw.  Mr. Daugherty said he will work on 

getting more people to do the clean sweep.  Matt said not to hang up the handbill ordinance just yet. 

 

VI. NEXT MEETING /  September 21, 2015 

 

VII. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

6:20 P.M. 

 

36



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

AUGUST 24, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Jeffrey Ramsland, Dan Romanchuk Denis Kearney, III; John 

Cox.  

 

Absent:  Pokey Miller; Doug Bailey. 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Joe Davis, Council Liaison; Lee Johnson, 

BCEDA. 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / July 27, 2015  

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to approve the July 27, 2015 meeting minutes as written.  Seconded by. 

Jeff Ramsland. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

4.   OLD BUSINESS 

      1.)  Discuss DISC Project 

The board discussed the DISC project. 

 

5.   TREASURERS REPORT 

 

Cash Balance / April 30, 2015  $436,579.63 

Interest:     $        68.64 

Deposits:    $  14,133.04  

Less:       

Cash Balance / July 31, 2015:  $450,781.31  

  

Receivable Check:              $14,473.84  

 

Encumbered Funds:   $325,231.74  (DISC) 

 

MOTION BY Jeff Ramsland to accept the Treasurers Report.  Seconded by John Cox. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS   

No new business. 

 

 

37



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

AUGUST 24, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

7.   REPORT FROM BALDWIN COUNTY ECONOMIC ALLIANCE 

      No report. 

 

8.   OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business to discuss. 

 

9.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting will be September 28, 2015 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Jeff Ramsland to adjourn.  Seconded by John Cox. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

The board adjourned at 8:22 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

         

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR 

 

OCTOBER 5, 2015 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 
1.)         Revisions to the Land Use and Development Ordinance / Zoning Map 

 

2.)        Pre-zone:   John W. West 

     Present zoning:   RSF-4, Two Family District, Baldwin County District 16, in the 

     extra-territorial planning jurisdiction of Daphne 

 

     Proposed zoning:   B-1, Local Business, City of Daphne 

 

     Location:    Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy Cross Drive 

 

     Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

3.) Annexation:   John W. West  
      Location:    Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy Cross Drive 

 

      Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

4.)  Zoning Amendment  Cadence Bank 

Present zoning:    R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

 

Proposed Pre-zoning:   PUD, Planned Unit Development District, City of Daphne 

 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

5.)  Pre-zoning:   Cadence Bank 

Present zoning:    RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15, in the 

     extra-territorial planning jurisdiction 

 

Proposed Pre-zoning:   PUD, Planned Unit Development, District, City of Daphne 

 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

 

6.) Annexation:   Cadence Bank 

Location:    One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and 

     Pollard Road 

 

Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-57 

OPTION “A” 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE RE-

APPOINTING ONE DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

RENAISSANCE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne, Alabama, (the 

“City”), previously approved the formation of Renaissance Improvement District (the “District”), 

in accordance with Chapter 99A of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the 

“Act”); and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to re-appoint John Lake as a member of the District’s 

Board of Directors.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council, as follows:  

1. That John Lake is hereby re-appointed by the Council as a member of the   

             District’s Board of Directors. 

 

2. The term of John Lake shall begin immediately upon his appointment and shall 

end at 11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2019.   

 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of __________, 2015. 
 

           

 

      _________________________________________ 

      DANE HAYGOOD 

      MAYOR 

      ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

148



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-57 

OPTION “B” 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE APPOINTING 

ONE DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RENAISSANCE 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne, Alabama, (the 

“City”), previously approved the formation of Renaissance Improvement District (the “District”), 

in accordance with Chapter 99A of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the 

“Act”); and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to appoint Joe Davis as a member of the District’s Board of 

Directors.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council, as follows:  

1. That Joe Davis is hereby appointed by the Council as a member of the   

             District’s Board of Directors. 

 

2. The term of Joe Davis shall begin immediately upon his appointment and shall 

end at 11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2019.   

 

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of __________, 2015. 
 

           

 

      _________________________________________ 

      DANE HAYGOOD 

      MAYOR 

      ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

149



 

  
02214068.3 

RESOLUTION NO.  2015-58 

OPTION “A” 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE REAPPOINTING 

ONE DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RENAISSANCE COOPERATIVE 

DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne (the “City”) previously 

elected John Lake as a member of the Board of Directors of the Renaissance Cooperative District (the 

“District”) in accordance with Chapter 99B of Title 11 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the 

“Act”);  

WHEREAS, John Lake’s term as a member of the Board of Directors of the District expired on 

July 10, 2015; 

WHEREAS, John Lake is a duly qualified elector of the City, and is eligible for reelection 

pursuant to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to reelect John Lake as a member of the District’s Board of 

Directors for an additional term.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, as follows:  

1. That John Lake is hereby reappointed by the Council as a member of the District’s Board   

of Directors. 

 

2. The term of John Lake shall begin immediately upon reappointment and shall end at    

            11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2019.    

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _________ day of _______________, 2015. 

 

 

        

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

 

150



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  2015-58 

OPTION “B” 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE APPOINTING 

ONE DIRECTOR TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE RENAISSANCE 

COOPERATIVE DISTRICT 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne, Alabama, (the “City”) 

adopted Resolution No. 2007-38, which approved the formation of the Renaissance Cooperative 

District (the “Cooperative District”) in accordance with Chapter 99B of Title 11 of the Code of 

Alabama (1975), as amended (the “Act”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to appoint Joe Davis to the Cooperative District’s board of 

directors;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

1. That Joe Davis is hereby appointed by the Council as a member of the 

District’s Board of Directors to serve immediately upon his appointment and shall end at 

11:59 p.m. on June 5, 2019.  

 

ADOPTED this ______ day of __________, 2015. 

 

           

 

      ________________________________ 

      DANE HAYGOOD, 

      MAYOR 

       

  

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

151



152



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-46  

 

   

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located at the 

Southwest Corner of the Intersection of Champions Way and Alabama Highway 181 

The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, The Bills’ No. 2, LLC as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to PUD, Planned Unit 

Development District, City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of 

Champions Way and Alabama Highway 181, and more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description for Pre-zone: 

 
PER INSTRUMENT #639914 OF BALDWIN COUNTY PROBATE RECORDS: 

THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 5 

SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND THE WEST HALF OF 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the regular Planning Commission meeting on June 25, 2015, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a unanimous favorable recommendation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on August 3, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-1, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15, to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, City 

of Daphne, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

153



 

 
ORDINANCE 2015-46                           PRE-ZONE THE BILLS’ NO. 2, LLC                      PAGE   2 
 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015.       

                        

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2015-47  

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of Champions Way and 

Alabama Highway 181 

The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 10

th
 day of June, 2015, being the owner of all real property hereinafter described, 

did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed into and 

become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory, and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on August 3, 

2015 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

regular scheduled meeting on June 25, 2015, and the Commission set forth a unanimous favorable 

recommendation for the City Council of the City of Daphne to consider said request for annexation and 

said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
Legal Description for Annexation: 

 
PER INSTRUMENT #639914 OF BALDWIN COUNTY PROBATE RECORDS: 

THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, 

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND 

THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN 

COUNTY ALABAMA. 

169



ORDINANCE 2015-47                                         ANNEXATION  / THE BILLS’ NO. 2 LLC                                    PAGE   2 

 

  

 

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

170



171



172



ORDINANCE 2015-48 
 

Alabama Dept of Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA) 
Additional Appropriation for: Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point 

Park Preserve Boardwalk/Trails Extension – Project#14-RT-54-08 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application to the Alabama Department of 
Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA)  and was approved for funding I the amount of 
$88,624 for the following improvements at the Daphne Village Point Park : 1270 LF of new 
Boardwalk/Trails 
(2014 PW-031): 

 Construction of 800’ of ADA compliant wooden Boardwalk  

 Construction of 470’ of hard surface trail to connect the existing trail system in Village 
Point Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, an appropriation was approved in Ordinance 2014-55 for matching funds for the 
grant in the amount of $ 30,214 in the Fiscal 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne were received bids and total cost - $131,325 (construction-
$109,841 +engineering - $21,484). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that: 

1) The City of Daphne hereby accepted the offer of financial assistance from ADECA in 
the amount of $88,624 for the improvements (as herein stated) to the Daphne Village 
Point Park Preserve;  AND 

2) Funds in the amount of  $30,214 from the Lodging Tax Fund were hereby 
appropriated in Ordinance 2014-55 and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget 
for the construction of 1200 LF of Boardwalk/Trails at Village Point Park Preserve; 
AND 

3) Bids were received and additional funding is needed to complete the project in the 
amount of $12,488. 

4) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to go out to bid for the project and 
execute the grant agreement and any other documents required for the acceptance 
of the ADECA Village Point Park Trail RTP Project# 14-RT-54-08 on behalf of the 
City of Daphne. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

173



 
ORDINANCE 2015-49 

 
APPROPRIATION: DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL FUND RAISER – TASTE OF 

EASTERN SHORE 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City 
of Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Finance Director; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Daphne High School will rent the Civic Center for a fund raiser event 
to support school programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes Daphne High School and the 
importance of its programs to the City and the citizens of Daphne and the need 
for fund raising events to support their extracurricular programs; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $5,000 from the General Fund is hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for support of 
Daphne High School fund raising event: Taste of Eastern Shore. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
 
         
 
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor    
 
     
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

174



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2015-50 
 

JOB RECLASSIFICATION:  
An Ordinance Approving the Job Reclassification of  

 Fire Battalion Chief Position 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Fire Battalion Chief; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the Fire Battallion 
Chief position should be reclassified within the existing Job Classification Schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
 

1) The authorized position of the Fire Battalion Chief, shall be reclassified to 
Public Safety Grade 29 non-exempt to Public Safety Grade 31 exempt and 
the existing Job Classification Schedule shall be amended to include such 
revision; and    
 

2) The total annual increase of such reclassification is $12,433 ($ 10,626   
wages and $1,806 benefits)  

 
3) Appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of $1,435 for the 

remainder of FY2015. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2015. 
 
      
      
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

175



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE 2015 – 51 
 

AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO THE SALE BY THE UTILITIES BOARD OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY  

WHEREAS, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne (“Daphne Utilities”) is required to 

receive the consent of the City of Daphne before it sells property under the provisions of Ala. 

Code § 11-50-314(a)(10); and 

WHEREAS, the management of Daphne Utilities has determined that it is in the best 

interest of Daphne Utilities to sell the personal property described on Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Daphne Utilities has approved the sale of the 

personal property described on Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of the City of Daphne 

does hereby consent to the sale by Daphne Utilities of the personal property described on Exhibit 

“A”. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____day of ___________, 2015. 

  

       ___________________________________ 

Dane Haygood 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

176



 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Department Description Year 
Make / 
MFG Model Serial No. / Vin No.   

Water Distribution Truck (#85) 2000 Ford F350  1FDKF37H7VEB17374  

Water Quality Truck (#38) 2000 Ford 
F150 Ext 

Cab 1FTRX17W5YNC23149  

Gas Truck (#1052) 2004 Ford F-250 1FTNX20L54ED64107 

Water 
Reclamation Truck (#30) 2000 Ford 

F150 Ext 
Cab 1FTRX17W1YNC23150 

Waste Water 
Collections Truck (#08-01) 2008 Ford F-250 1FTSX20R68EA53329 

Waste Water 
Collections Truck (#15) 1993 GMC 3500 1GDHC34K4PE542265 

Meter Truck (#11) 2000 Dodge Dakota 1B7FL26XXYS779571 

Maintenance Truck (#64) 1994 Ford F250 1FTHF25H5RNB34613 

Maintenance Truck (#86) 1997 Ford F350 1FDKF37H9VEB17375  

Water Distribution GPR Unk Vermeer  DC-2A 1511 

Gas Boring Rig Unk 
Ditch 
Witch JT 920 2N1247 

Gas 
Tractor-Combo 
Unit Unk 

Ditch 
Witch 3700DD 380187 

Gas 
Tractor-Combo 
Unit Unk 

Ditch 
Witch 7610DD 5N0596 

Maintenance Dump Trailer Unk 
Triple 
Crown     

Various 

Miscellaneous 
Desks and File 
Cabinets Unk Various     

 

 

177


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commission Minute July 30 2015 SP
	Public Hearing Set Date Info 9-08-15
	Utility Board Minutes
	2015-57 - Option A - Renaissance 99A - Lake Improvement District
	2015-57 - Option B - 99A Renaissance - Davis Improvement District
	2015-58 - RES - Option A - 99B Renaissance - John Lake 
	2015-58 - RES - Option B  -  99B Renaissance - Joe Davis 
	2015-46 - ORD - PRE-ZONE -The Bills No. 2 LLC
	2015-47 - ORD - ANNEXATION - The Bills No. 2 LLC
	2015-48 - ORD - ADECA Grant-Rec Trails-Accept VP Park Presrv Enhanc-Add'l Approp
	2015-49 - ORD - DHS TOES Event
	2015-50 - ORD - Job Reclassification - Fire Battalion Chiefs
	2015-51 - ORD - DUB Salvage Sale Resolution 15



